
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell


Discussion of proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations, Article VI, Tree Retention, 


Protection and Replacement.


Proposed amendments to Chapter 8, Fayette County Development Regulations, Article VI- Tree Retention, Protection and Replacement 


include clarifying the variance process for construction in critical root zones of specimen trees bringing this variance process in line with 


variance processes of Floodplain Management and Watershed Protection development ordinances.


No action is required.  Staff is seeking permission to place Ordinance Number 2012-12, proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, 


Chapter 8, Development Regulations, Article VI, Tree Retention, Protection and Replacement on the November 15, 2012 Consent 


Agenda.


Funds are not needed at this time, but will be part of an overall cost to update the Fayette County Code of Ordinances.


Yes Tuesday, March 13, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessWednesday, November 7, 2012







ARTICLE VI.  TREE RETENTION, PROTECTION AND REPLACEMENT 
(Came into existence on 12/14/89) 


 


 


 
Sec. 8-176.  Introduction.   


 


It is hereby determined that: 


 


Trees are a valuable asset to the rural/urban environment of Fayette County and can generate such 
benefits as:  the purification of air; moderation of the microclimate; reduction of noise and glare; 
conservation of energy in terms of heating and cooling; prevention of soil erosion; reduced stormwater 
management costs; minimization of flood potential; improved water quality; enhancement and 
stabilization of property values; increased aesthetics; and preservation of the rural character of 
unincorporated Fayette County. 
 
Therefore, Fayette County adopts this ordinance to provide requirements to protect the rural and wooded 
character of unincorporated Fayette County through the preservation and replanting of trees when new 
development occurs. 


 


 
Sec. 8-177.  Definitions. 


 
Certified Arborist.  An arborist certified by the International Society of Arboriculture (ISA).   
 


Clearing.  An activity that removes or disturbs the vegetative cover including trees. 
 
Critical Root Zone (CRZ). The minimum area beneath a tree which must be left undisturbed.  The 
critical root zone shall be equal to one and one half (1.5) feet of radial distance for every inch of the tree’s 
DBH, with a minimum of eight feet.  (Ord. No. 2000-02) 
 
Deciduous Tree.  A tree that annually loses leaves. 
 
Dripline.  A line on the ground established by a vertical plane extending from a tree’s outermost  branch 
tips down to the ground; i.e., the line enclosing the area directly beneath the tree’s crown from which 
rainfall would drip. 


 
Diameter-at-breast-height DBH.  Standard measure of existing tree size and is the trunk diameter 
measured in inches at height of four and one-half (4½) feet above the ground.  If a tree splits into multiple 
trunks below four and one-half (4 ½) feet, then the trunk is measured at its most narrow point beneath the 
split.  A tree that splits into multiple trunk above 4 ½ feet is measured as a single tree at 4 ½ feet. 
 
Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Plan.  A plan required by the Erosion, Sedimentation 
and Pollution Control Act. O.C.G.A., 12-7-1 et seq., that includes, at a minimum, protections at least as 
stringent as this ordinance. 
 
Evergreen Tree.  Tree that retains its foliage throughout the year. 
 







Existing Density Unit (EDU).  A tree density unit assigned for the preservation of existing trees that will 
remain on site and protected during construction and where one (1) EDU is equivalent to one (1) inch of 
DBH when the DBH is a minimum size of four (4) inches.  
 
Land-disturbing activity.  Any land change which may result in soil erosion from water or wind and the 
movement of sediment into State water or onto lands within the State, including, but not limited to, 
clearing, dredging, grading, excavating, transporting and filling of land, other than federal lands. 
 
Land Disturbance Permit.  Authorization to conduct a land-disturbing activity under the provisions of 
Article IX, Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control.  
 
Landscaping.  Any additions to the natural features of a plot of ground to restore construction 
disturbance and to make an area more attractive. 
 
Landscape Areas.  An area set aside for the installation and maintenance of ornamental planting 
materials. 
 
Overstory (Canopy) Tree.   Any tree that, under normal forest conditions, will compose the top layer or 
canopy of vegetation and generally will reach a mature height of greater than 40 feet. Examples include: 
Oak, Maple, Elm, Bald Cypress, Cryptomeria. 
 
Replacement Density Unit (RDU).  A tree density unit assigned to a new tree planted to achieve the site 
density unit (SDU) and is equivalent to the number of inches of trunk diameter measured at six (6) inches 
above the ground.   
 


Shrub.  A plant with persistent woody stems and a relatively low growth habit, distinguished from a tree 
by producing several basal stems instead of a single trunk. 


 
Site.  That portion of a tract of land that will be dedicated to a proposed development, including the land 
containing trees that will be counted toward satisfying the requirements of these provisions. 
 
Site Density Unit (SDU).  The minimum number of tree density units that must be achieved on a non-
residential site after development and is equal to Existing Density Units (EDU) plus Replacement Density 
Units (RDU.)  


 
Specimen Tree or Stand.  Any tree or grouping of trees that is determined to be of high value and 
qualifies for special consideration for preservation because of its species, size, or historical significance.   


 
Tree.  A self-supporting woody perennial plant that, at maturity, has one (1) or more stems or trunks that 
attain a diameter of at least three (3) inches; a more or less definitely formed crown of foliage; and a 
height of 10 feet or more. 
 
Tree Density Units (TDU).  A unit of measurement for tree density based on the diameter of the tree.  
 
Tree Protection Area.  A barrier constructed around trees at construction sites sufficient to prevent 
damage or injury to tree trunks, limbs, and roots. The tree protection area shall be either the dripline of the 
tree or the critical root zone of a tree or clusters of trees to be retained, whichever is greater.  
 
Understory Tree.  A tree that, under normal forest conditions, grows to maturity beneath overstory trees 
and will generally reach a mature height of at least 10 feet, but less than 40 feet.  Examples include 
dogwood, red bud, fringe tree, lusterleaf holly, and red cedar. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 







 
Utility. Public or private water or sewer piping systems, water or sewer pumping stations, electric power 
lines, fuel pipelines, telephone lines or other utilities identified by a local government. 
 
Variance.  A grant of relief from the CRZ requirements of this ordinance that permits construction in 


a manner otherwise prohibited by this ordinance. 
 
Sec. 8-178. General Provisions 


 


(a) Purpose and Intent. The purpose of this ordinance is to establish minimum requirements for tree 
retention, protection and replacement in Fayette County and to protect the rural and wooded 
character of Fayette County through the preservation and replanting of trees when new 
development occurs.  It is the intent of this ordinance that all site planning and design for 
development of land be undertaken with a survey of trees on the property and that the grading, 
final placement of buildings, structures, and roads, utilities, and other features minimizes the 
removal of existing trees, and insures aesthetic replacement and distribution. 


 
(b) Applicability.  This ordinance shall apply to any activity that requires or precedes submittal of a 


Preliminary Plat, an Erosion, Sedimentation, and Pollution Control Plan, or a site plan as defined 
in Article II.  Non-residential subdivisions without common infrastructure are still required to 
submit a TPP but are not required to submit TDUs. 


   
(c) Exemptions.  


 
(i) Removal of trees determined to be dead, diseased, or infested as determined by the Georgia 


Forestry Commission or a Certified Arborist and approved by the Stormwater Management 
Department. 


 
(ii) Construction of single-family or two-family residential structures, accessory structures, or 


any minor land-disturbing activities. 
 
(iii) Orchards and tree nurseries in active commercial operation. 
 
(iv) Agricultural operations as exempted in Article IX, Section 8-243.(5). 


 
(v) Public roads, public utilities (as exempted in Article IX, Section 8-243(9-11)), and 


telecommunication towers.  
 
(vi) Commercial forestry operations, including timber harvesting. 


 (Ord. No. 2000-02) 
 


(d) Designation of Ordinance. Administrator.  The Fayette County Stormwater Management 
Department shall administer this ordinance. 


 
(e) Compatibility with Other Regulations. This ordinance is not intended to modify or repeal any other 


ordinance, rule, regulation, statute, easement, covenant, deed restriction or other provision of law.  
The requirements of this ordinance are in addition to the requirements of any other ordinance, rule, 
regulation or other provision of law, and where any provision of this ordinance imposes restrictions 
different from those imposed by any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other provision of law, 
whichever provision is more restrictive or impose higher protective standards for human health or 
the environmental shall control. 







 
(f) Severability.  If the provisions of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of this 


ordinance shall be adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment shall not 
affect or invalidate the remainder of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of 
this ordinance. 


 
(g) Effective Date. This Ordinance becomes effective upon adoption by the Board of Commissioners. 


 
(h) Technical Standards.  Standards for plant selection and installation listed below are incorporated by 


reference: 


(i) “American Standard for Nursery Stock”  (ANSI Z60.1-2004) 


(ii) “Manual for Woody Landscape Plants”  (Michael Dirr, 2009, Stipes)” 


(iii) “Principles and Practices of Planting Trees and Shrubs”(Watson and Himelick, 1997, ISA)  


(iv) “American National Standards for Tree Care Operations” (ANSI A300) 


(v) University of Georgia Cooperative Extension Service Bulletin No. 625 Landscape Plants for 
Georgia 


 
Sec. 8-179.  Tree Retention, Protection and Replacement Requirements.  
For all sites with three (3) acres or less, all trees used in the SDU calculation shall be individually 
inventoried.   For all sites over three (3) acres industry standard sampling methods may be used to prepare 
a tree survey  when trees are of such density to make individual tree identification impractical.  In such 
cases the tree surveyor shall show tree stands and provide estimates of size and species on the Tree 
Protection Plan. 
 


(a) Site Density Requirements. The required tree density for each non-residential site is referred to 
as the Site Density Unit (SDU).  Each property subject to this article shall have a minimum 
required SDU based on total number of disturbed acres on the project site. 
 
(i) The total SDU required equals Existing Density Units (EDU) plus Replacement Density 


Units (RDU). 
 
(ii) Property subject to this Article that is greater than or equal to three (3) acres shall have or 


exceed an average SDU of 100 TDU’s per acre. 
 
(iii) Property subject to this Article that is less than three (3) acres shall have or exceed an 


average SDU of fifty (50) TDU’s per acre. 
 


(iv) Credit will be given to trees retained on a property having a DBH of four (4) inches or 
more. 


 
(v) At least 50 percent of the EDU’s per acre must be located outside of any zoning or 


watershed buffers as referenced in Articles V and VII. 
 


(vi) Palm trees are not acceptable for SDU credit. 
 


(b) Specimen Trees. 







 
(i) Criteria for determination of specimen trees or stands are as follows: 
  


1) Any deciduous canopy tree where the DBH equals or exceeds 24 inches. 
   


2) Any evergreen canopy tree where the DBH equals or exceeds 30 inches. 
 


3) Any understory tree where the DBH equals or exceeds ten (10) inches. 
 


4) Any tree which has significant historical value and can be documented through 
historical records or otherwise. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 
(ii) Removal.  Any specimen tree removed without prior approval of the Stormwater 


Management Department will be replaced by trees equaling two (2) times an inch-for-
inch replacement of the tree removed.  Size alone will determine whether a tree was of 
specimen quality if the tree is removed without approval and there is no evidence of its 
condition.  Such action may result in a stop work order issued by the Stormwater 
Management Department. 


  
 Written justification must be given for any specimen tree designated for removal.  The 


Fayette County Stormwater Management Department may require additional information 
including, but not limited to, a certified arborist’s appraisal of the tree’s viability and 
anticipated life span. 


 
 Any specimen tree may be removed if it is shown that at least one of the following 


conditions is met: 
 


1) The location of the tree prevents the opening of reasonable and necessary vehicular 
traffic lanes. 


 
2) The location of the tree prevents the construction of utility lines or drainage facilities 


which may not feasibly be relocated. 
 


3) The location of the tree prevents reasonable access to the property, if no alternate 
exists.  


 
4) The tree is diseased, dead, or dying to the point that repair or restoration is not 


practical or the disease may be transmitted to other trees.   
 


5) There is no reasonable assurance that if the tree is saved with proper construction 
precautions, it will continue to live as an asset to the site. 


 
(iii)  Preservation.  All reasonable efforts should be made to preserve specimen trees and 


incorporate them into the design of the project.  Specimen trees saved by a specifically 
designed feature of the building, hardscape, or utilities shall be given EDU credit of two 
(2) inches per inch DBH. 


(c) Replacement Tree Requirements. 


All trees selected for replacement density units must meet the following requirements: 







(i)      Trees must be free of disease, injury, or infestation, and must be ecologically compatible 
with the specifically intended growing area (see Section 8-184), and planted in 
accordance with standards established by the International Society of Arboriculture. 


(ii) At a minimum, four (4) species mixture of different trees, with at least three (3) being 
deciduous hardwoods should be utilized. (Ord. No. 2000-02).  


(iii) No more than thirty (30) percent of replacement trees may be of a single species.   


(iv) A fifty percent mix of overstory and understory trees shall be maintained.  See Sec, 8-
184. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


(v)   Trees shall have a minimum caliper requirement of two and one half (2½) inches in 
diameter as measured at six (6) inches above the ground at time of planting.  


(vi)   All trees planted to fulfill the replacement tree requirements shall be in place before a 
Certificate of Occupancy is granted.  In the event that the requirements of this Article 
cannot be met at the time a Certificate of Occupancy is otherwise granted, refer to 
“Buffer and Landscape Areas,” Section 8-162 Performance Surety, in these Development 
Regulations.  (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


(vii)   All tree planted under the requirements of this Article which do not survive for 24 
months after issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy will be replaced as a condition of 
occupancy.  Trees shall be bonded via a maintenance agreement in the amount of (100%) 
of their replacement cost.  Bonds will be released after the 24 month period has passed, 
and the health of the trees have been certified and accepted by the County.  Refer to 
“Buffer and Landscape Areas,” Section 8-163 General Maintenance, in these 
Development Regulations. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


(viii) See Section 8-160.d.2 and Section 8-161 for suggested tree species.  For additional tree 
species, especially understory (small) trees, see University of Georgia Cooperative 
Extension Service Bulletin No. 625 Landscape Plants for Georgia.   


(d) Tree Protection Requirements.   


(i) A tree protection area shall be maintained around all trees and stands of trees to be 
retained throughout the duration of construction by tree protection fencing.  


 
(ii)   The tree protection area of stand-alone trees and stands of trees shall be marked with 


standard tree protection fencing (orange) or chain-link fencing and “Tree Protection 
Area” signs.  At least two (2) “Tree Protection Area” signs shall be posted at each 
individual tree protection area. (Ord. No 2000-02) 


 
(iii) All tree protection fencing shall be inspected for proper installation by the Stormwater 


Management Department during the initial erosion and sediment control inspection.   
 
(iv) During subdivision street construction, land disturbance allowed by a development 


permit shall be limited to areas needed for street right-of-way, drainage easements, 
erosion and sediment control practices and utilities.  All other areas shall remain 
undisturbed for tree protection purposes. 


 







(v) If utilities must run through the tree protection area and the running of those utilities will 
encroach into the critical root zone CRZ of any trees to be saved, the utility must be 
tunneled at a depth of 24 inches.  When feasible, utilities will run along streets, roadways, 
driveways, or sidewalks.  Reasonable efforts shall be made to save as many trees as 
possible.  (Ord. NO. 2000-02) 


 
(vi) If it is determined that irreparable damage has occurred to a tree or trees within a 


designated tree protection area, as determined by the Fayette County Stormwater 
Management Department, the Georgia Forestry Commission, or a Certified Arborist, it 
shall be the responsibility of the developer/builder to remove and replace the tree or trees 
and guarantee survival after the issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy as references in 
Section 8-179.c.vii and Article V. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 


(e) Tree Protection Plan.  
 


(i) Procedures. 
 


1) The TPP shall be submitted with the Preliminary Plat, Erosion, Sedimentation and 
Pollution Control Plan or the Site Plan, whichever is the first submittal required by 
Fayette County Planning and Zoning Department. 


 
2) The Tree Protection Plan shall be prepared by either a licensed Landscape Architect 


or Forester; Certified Arborist, or other licensed professional of similar design 
discipline licensed in Georgia. 


 
3) The Stormwater Management Department shall have a maximum of 14 calendar days 


from the submittal date, or each re-submittal date, for plan review.  If the plan is not 
approved a deficiency checklist will be submitted back to the applicant.  


 
(ii) Submittal. 
  
 The Tree Protection Plan shall be submitted on a scale of no less than one (1) inch to 100 


feet and shall include project name, design professional’s name and contact information, 
north arrow, graphic scale, and date.  The plan should clearly show and label the 
following: 


 
1) Tree save areas noting the location, size, DBH, dripline, CRZ, and species name 


(common name) of each tree that will be retained to fulfill the SDU requirements.  
Five or more trees whose dripline and CRZ combine into one tree protection area 
may be outlined as a group with the exception of specimen trees. 


 
2) Summary table listing the DBH and species name of each RDU and EDU tree used to 


obtain the required SDU under “Notes.” 


 
3) If a group of trees is outlined on the plan as a tree save area, include a summary table 


listing the size, DBH and species name of each tree within that group under “Notes.” 


 
4) Location of all new replacement trees including species name and DBH that fulfill 


RDU requirements. 


 







5) Location of any specimen tree designated in a tree protection area including the 
DBH, CRZ and species name even if contained in a group.  If construction is limited 
to streets, drainage easements and utilities the TPP only needs to show all specimen 
trees located within 100 feet of the centerline of any right-of-way, or drainage/utility 
easements. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 
6) Location of any specimen trees designated for removal during construction including 


the size, DBH and species name.  See Sec. 8-181. 


 
7) Location, depth and height of all existing and proposed utility lines that could impact 


any trees. 


 
8) Boundaries of property, buffer and landscaped areas, buildings and structures, vehicle 


use areas, and other impervious areas. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 
9) Calculations for meeting all required site density units under “Notes.”  If a scientific 


method is used to determine the site density units, label all sample areas and provide 
a listing of trees by size and species as based on sampling method requirements. 


 
10) Under “Notes” state the following:  “No land disturbance, construction processes, or 


storage of equipment or materials shall take place within a designated tree protection 
area in order to prevent direct physical root damage, indirect root damage, and trunk 
and crown damage. (Ord. No. 2000-02) 


 
 


Sec. 8-180.  Appeals and Variances.   
 


The following variance and appeals procedures shall apply to an applicant who has been 


denied a permit for a development activity or to an owner or developer who has not applied for 


a permit because it is clear that the proposed development activity would be inconsistent with 


the provisions of this ordinance. 


 


(a) Requests for variances shall only be given for a reduction in the Critical Root Zone 


(CRZ).  


 


(b) Requests for a variance from the CRZ requirements of this ordinance shall be 


submitted to the Stormwater Management Department.  All such requests shall be 


heard and decided in accordance with procedures to be published in writing by the 


Stormwater Management Department.   


 


(c) Any person adversely affected by any decision of the Stormwater Management 


Department shall have the right to appeal such decision to the Fayette County Zoning 


Board of Appeals as established by Fayette County in accordance with Article IX of the 


Fayette County Zoning Ordinance.  At a minimum, such procedures shall include 


notice to all affected parties and the opportunity to be heard. 


 







(d) Any person aggrieved by the decision of the Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals 


may appeal such decision to the Fayette County State Court, as provided in Section 5-


4-1 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated. 


 


(e) In reviewing such requests, the Stormwater Management Department and Fayette 


County Zoning Board of Appeals shall consider all technical evaluations, relevant 


factors, and all standards specified in this and other sections of this ordinance.  


 


 


(f) Variances shall only be considered based on the follow criteria: 


 


(i) Disturbance of the CRZ of less than 30%; 


(ii) A reduction in the CRZ based on industry standards less stringent than outlined 


in this ordinance.  


 


(g) Conditions for Variances:  


 


(i) A variance shall be issued only when all of the following conditions are met:  


 


1) a finding of good and sufficient cause; and  


 


2) a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in 


exceptional hardship.  


 


(ii) Any person to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice 


specifying the difference between the current CRZ(s) requirements and the 


CRZ(s) requested in the variance. 


 


(iii) The Fayette County Stormwater Management Department shall maintain the 


records of all appeal actions. 


  


(iv) Any person requesting a variance shall, from the time of the request until the 


time the request is acted upon, submit such information and documentation as 


Fayette County Stormwater Management Department and Fayette County 


Zoning Board of Appeals shall deem necessary to the consideration of the 


request including, but not limited to, a certified arborist’s appraisal of the tree’s 


viability and anticipated life span. 


 


(v) Upon consideration of the factors listed above and the purposes of this Ordinance, 


Fayette County Stormwater Management Department and the Fayette County Zoning 


Board of Appeals may attach such conditions to the granting of variances as they deem 


necessary or appropriate, consistent with the purposes of this Ordinance.  


 


1) Variances shall not be issued “after the fact.” 


 


2) At a minimum, a variance request shall include the following information: 







 


3) A site map that includes locations of all streams, wetlands, floodplain 


boundaries and other natural features, as determined by field survey; 


4)  


5) A description of the shape, size, topography, slope, soils, vegetation and 


other physical characteristics of the property; 


 


6) A detailed site plan that shows the locations of all existing and proposed 


structures and other impervious cover, the limits of all existing and 


proposed land disturbance, both inside and outside CRZ.  The exact area of 


the CRZ to be affected shall be accurately and clearly indicated; 


 


7) Documentation of unusual hardship should the CRZ be maintained; 


 


8) At least one alternative plan, which does not include CRZ disturbance or 


reduction, or an explanation of why such a site plan is not possible; 


 


9) A calculation of the total area and length of the proposed intrusion; 


 


10) Proposed mitigation, for the intrusion.  If mitigation is not proposed, the 


request must explain why. 


 


(vi) The following factors may considered in determining whether to issue a 


variance: 


 


1) The shape, size, topography, slope, soils, vegetation and other physical 


characteristics of the property; 


 


2) The location and extent of the proposed CRZ intrusion; and, 


 


3) Whether alternative designs are possible which require less intrusion or no 


intrusion; 


 


4) The long-term impacts of the proposed variance; and, 


 


5) Whether issuance of the variance is at least as protective of natural 


resources and the environment. 
 
 
Any applicant who is aggrieved by any decision of the Fayette County Stormwater Management 
Department relating to the application of this ordinance shall have the right to appeal as provided under 
Article IX of the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance.  


 


Sec. 8-181. Violations, Enforcement and Penalties. 


 


Any action or inaction which violates the provisions of this ordinance or the requirements of an approved 
stormwater management application may be subject to the enforcement actions outlines in this Section.  







Any such action or inaction, which is continuous with respect to time, is deemed to be a public nuisance 
and may be abated by injunctive or other equitable relief.  The imposition of any of the penalties 
described below shall not prevent such equitable relief. 
 


(h) Notice-of-Violation.  If the Stormwater Management Department determines that an applicant or 
other responsible person has failed to comply with the terms and conditions of a permit, an 
approved Stormwater Management Plan or the provisions of this ordinance, it shall issue a 
written notice of violation to such applicant or other responsible person.  Where a person is 
engaged in activity covered by this ordinance without having first secured a permit, the notice of 
violation shall be served on the owner of the responsible person in charge of the activity being 
conducted on the site.  
 
The notice-of-violation shall contain: 


 
(iii) The name and address of the owner or the applicant or the responsible person; 
 
(iv) The address or description of the site upon which the violation is occurring; 


 
(v) A statement specifying the nature of the violation; 


 
(vi) A description of the remedial measures necessary to bring the action or inaction into 


compliance with the permit, the Stormwater Management Action Plan or this ordinance 
and the date for the completion of such remedial action; and, 


 
(vii) A statement of the penalty or penalties that may be assessed against the person to whom 


the notice of violation is directed. 
 


(i) Penalties. In the event the remedial measures described in the notice of violation have not been 
completed by the date set forth for such completion in the notice of violation, any one or more of 
the following actions or penalties may be taken or assessed against the person to whom the notice 
of violation was directed.  Before taking any of the following actions or imposing any of the 
following penalties, the Stormwater Management Department shall first notify the applicant or 
other responsible person in writing of its intended action, and shall provide a reasonable 
opportunity, of not less than ten (10) days (except, that in the event the violation constitutes an 
immediate danger to public health or public safety, 24-hours notice shall be sufficient) to cure 
such violation.  In the event the applicant or other responsible person fails to cure such violation 
after such notice and cure period, the Stormwater Management Department may take one or more 
of the following action or impose any one or more of the following penalties:  


 


(i) Stop Work Order.  The Stormwater Management Department may issue a stop work order 
that shall be served on the applicant or other responsible person.  The stop work order 
shall remain in effect until the applicant other responsible person has taken the remedial 
measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violation or 
violations described therein, provided the stop work order may be withdrawn or modified 
to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary remedial measures 
to cure such violation or violations. 
 


(ii) Withhold Certificate-of-Occupancy.  The Stormwater Management Department may 
recommend to the Fayette County Permits and Inspection Department refuse to issue a 
Certificate-of-Occupancy for the building other improvements constructed or being 
constructed on the site until the applicant or other responsible person has taken the 







remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the violations 
described therein. 


 
(iii) Suspension, Revocation or Modification of Permit.  The Stormwater Management 


Department may suspend, revoke or modify the permit authorizing the land-development 
project.  A suspended, revoked or modified permit may be reinstated after the applicant or 
other responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice-of-
violation(s) or has otherwise cured the violations described therein, provided such permit 
may be reinstated (upon such conditions as the Stormwater Management Department may 
deem necessary) to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take the necessary 
remedial measures to cure such violations. 


 
(j) Citations.   For intentional and flagrant violations of this ordinance, or in the event the applicant 


or other responsible person fails to take the remedial measures set forth in previously issued 
notice-of-violations(s) or otherwise fails to cure the violations within ten days, the Stormwater 
Management Department may issue a citation to the applicant or other responsible person, 
requiring such person to appear in State Court of Fayette County to answer charges of such 
violation.  Upon conviction, such person shall be punished by a fine not to exceed $1,000 or 
imprisonment for 60 days or both.  Each act of violation and each day upon which any violation 
shall occur shall constitute a separate offense.   


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 





		Stormwater- Article VI Agenda Request File

		Stormwater- Article VI Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell


Discussion of the Floodplain Management Program and recent Class 6 recertification through the National Floodplain Insurance Program 


Customer Rating System.  


Fayette County received notification of being recertified as a Class 6 community in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) 


Customer Rating System (CRS) program.  The county participates in the NFIP and CRS as part of goals and objectives set forth in the 


federally required Fayette County Hazard Mitigation Plan.  Additionally, CRS participation provides a flood insurance premium discount to 


communities that implement floodplain management activities above and beyond minimum federal requirements and, more importantly, 


helps reduce the potential for response by emergency services to flooded areas in the county.   


Obtaining a Class 6 rating allows residents who are required by mortgage companies to buy flood insurance to receive up to a 20% 


discount if their property contains an area of special flood hazard and a 10% discount if it does not.  Unincorporated Fayette County has 


approximately 2,500 parcels in flood zone areas.  To date 175 flood insurance policies with total annual premiums of $477, 617 have 


been issued.  Approximately $55,679 is saved annually with Fayette County's Class 6 rating.  Unincorporated Fayette County is 1 of 7 


communities in Georgia and 1of 176 communities in the United States to obtain a Class 6 rating. 


Achievements allowing this rating are: enforcement of the MNGWPD Floodplain ordinance that requires higher standards than the federal 


regulations and the watershed protection buffers that are measured from FEMA floodplain boundaries; reduction in repetitive flood loss 


homes; GIS floodplain mapping and floodplain education.  


No action is requested.  This discussion is for informational purposes only.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessWednesday, November 7, 2012







“The Three‐Legged Stool”
NFIP balances three related programs:


Flood Insurance


Provisions for property owners


in participating communities


Floodplain Management


Federal, State and Local regulations


Flood Hazard Mapping


FIRM maps 


Future Conditions maps







FLOOD INSURANCE







Session Name: FEMA Programs II
Coastal Hazards Management Course


• Self-supporting program 


• Offers federally-backed flood insurance


• Communities must adopt and enforce floodplain management ordinances


• Flood insurance is required for all secured loans made by a federally
regulated or backed lending institution


National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP)


Slide 32.7







Session Name: FEMA Programs II
Coastal Hazards Management Course


• Available in NFIP communities


• Provides flood insurance premium discounts


• Communities must engage in floodplain management activities
above NFIP minimums (federal regulations).


Community Rating System (CRS)


Slide 32.14







Session Name: FEMA Programs II
Coastal Hazards Management Course


• Additional Flood Data


• Open Space Preservation


• Higher Regulatory Standards


• Flood Data Maintenance


• Stormwater Management


CRS Mapping and Regulatory Activities


Slide 32.17







Session Name: FEMA Programs II
Coastal Hazards Management Course


• Floodplain Management Plan


• Acquisition and Relocation


• Flood Protection (Retrofitting)


• Drainage system maintenance


CRS Flood Protection Activities


Slide 32.18







FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT







Floodplain Management
(Regulations)


• Federal – 44 CFR Sections 59‐77
– Describe program and terms


– Provides minimum floodplain management 
criteria for communities to adopt and enforce


• State – Coordinator
– Must approve local ordinance


– Reviews for standards set forth by Metropolitian
North Georgia Watershed Planning District


• Future Conditions Floodplain Mapping







FLOODPLAIN MAPPING







Flood Insurance Rate Maps


• FIRM Panel Map 
– Dated 1996


– Known AE zone


– Relationship to 
parcels is not 
known







Digital FIRM Map


Adopted in 2008


GIS Layers









		Stormwater- Floodplain CRS Renewal Agenda Request File

		Stormwater- Floodplain CRS Renewal Backup

		“The Three-Legged Stool”

		Flood Insurance

		Slide Number 3

		Slide Number 4

		Slide Number 5

		Slide Number 6

		Floodplain management

		Floodplain Management�(Regulations)

		Floodplain Mapping

		Flood Insurance Rate Maps

		Digital FIRM Map

		Slide Number 12








Workshop AgendaWorkshop AgendaWorkshop AgendaWorkshop Agenda
Board of Commissioners


November 7, 2012


 3:30 P.M.


Call to Order.


Acceptance of Agenda.


OLD BUSINESS:


1. Appointment of members to the Ethics Board.


2. Discussion of proposed amendments to Fayette County Code, Chapter 8,


Development Regulations, Article VI, Tree Retention, Protection and


Replacement.


NEW BUSINESS:


1. Mrs. Elizabeth Whitlock requests the Board’s consideration to amend Fayette


County’s Zoning Ordinance as it relates to pet grooming in the O-I (Office-


Institutional) Zoning District.


2. Discussion of the Floodplain Management Program and recent Class 6


recertification through the National Floodplain Insurance Program Customer


Rating System.


3. Discussion of appointing two members to the Public Facilities Authority.


4. Discussion of an appointment to the Region Six Mental Health Regional


Planning Board.


5. Update on current SPLOST projects in Fayette County.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT:


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman


Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF


Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION


Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES


1st Wednesday each month at 3:30 p.m.


i


COMMISSION OFFICE


Administrative Complex
Suite 100


140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Herb Frady


Appointment of members to Fayette County's Ethics Board.


On November 18, 2012, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners adopted Ordinance 2010-20; commonly referred to as the Ethics 


Ordinance.  During its adoption, the Board discussed the need to quickly appoint citizens to the Ethics Board; however, to date, no one 


has been appointed. 


 


On October 11, 2012, the County Clerk received an Ethics Complaint against County Attorney Scott Bennett.  Based on the Ethics 


Ordinance, the Ethics Board has thirty (30) days to take some action after a complaint is made.  The thirty day deadline will expire on 


Friday, November 9, 2012. 


 


During its October 25, 2012 meeting, the Board of Commissioners agreed that it would have nominees available by Wednesday, October 


31, 2012, and that the Board would be established, at the latest, at the November 7, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop meeting.   


 


The Board of Commissioners is requested to establish the Ethics Board at this meeting.  Three appointments with staggered terms, and 


two alternate appointments need to be made at this meeting.


Establish the Ethics Board.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, October 25, 2012


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessWednesday, November 7, 2012







Action Agenda
October 25, 2012
Page Number 2


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Brown moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 1-4.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion. 


No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0 with Chairman Frady being absent.


1. Approval of staff’s request to award Bid #843- Library Carpet Installation to Mehio’s Flooring, doing
business as Expressive Flooring, for the purpose of replacing the carpet in designated locations in
the Library, at a cost of $35,155.00, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and
related documents contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to extend the annual price contract for blended phosphate with
Pristine Water Solutions, Inc., for the price of $71.00 per 50 pound pail, and authorization for the
Chairman to sign the contract extension contingent upon the County Attorney’s review.


3. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #849 to low-bidders Cole Technology, Inc. (doing
business as PMC) and to GMP Environmental, in an aggregate amount of $22,443.21, for the repair
and installation of the Raw Water #4 pump and motor at the Lake Horton Pump Station, and
authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract or related documents contingent upon the
Attorney’s review.


4. Approval of the October 3, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes and the Board of
Commissioners October 11, 2012 Board of Commissioners Minutes.


NEW BUSINESS:


1. Discussion concerning the appointment of members to the Ethics Board.


The Board agreed to provide nominees for the Ethics Board by Wednesday, October 31, and for those


nominees to be voted upon, at the latest, by the November 7, 2012 Board of Commissioners Workshop


Meeting.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


There was no Administrator’s Report.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Georgia Supreme Court Ruling Concerning Fayette County Solicitor-General Jamie Inagawa’s Lawsuit:
County Attorney Scott Bennett briefed the Board on the Georgia Supreme Court’s ruling in favor of Fayette County


Solicitor Jamie Inagawa over Fayette County. 







 


 


To:  Jack Krakeel, County Administrator 


 


From:  Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 


 


Date:  October 16, 2012 


 


Subject: Ethics Ordinance and Establishing an Ethic Board. 


 


 


On November 18, 2010, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners adopted Ordinance 2010-10; commonly 


referred to as the Ethics Ordinance.  I am attaching a copy of the Ethics Ordinance for your use and review.  


Prior to its adoption, the Board discussed the particulars of the Ethics Ordinance and made recommendations 


during the October 6, 2010 and November 3, 2010 Workshop meetings. Those recommendations are 


incorporated in the approved Ethics Ordinance.   


 


When the Ethics Ordinance was passed on November 18, 2010, the Board discussed how quickly names should 


be submitted to in order to establish the Ethics Board.  It was agreed at that time that individuals should be 


nominated quickly so that the Board could be established as soon as possible.  There was even discussion that 


nominees to the Ethics Board could be voted on by the last meeting of December 2010. 


 


Unfortunately, the minutes do not indicate that an Ethics Board was established or that nominees were 


recommended.  


  


On October 11, 2012, I received an Ethics Complaint against County Attorney Scott Bennett. The Ethics Board 


has within thirty (30) days to take some action after a complaint is received.  I believe it is essential that the 


Board of Commissioners submit nominations for the Ethics Board as quickly as possible in order to respond in 


timely manner to this complaint.  The Board only has one Thursday night meeting, October 25, and one 


Workshop meeting, November 7, to vote on nominees to the Ethics Board.  The only Thursday night meeting in 


November will take place after the thirty (30) day requirement has expired. 


  


Please let me know how you think is the best way to proceed with this issue. 


 


FLJ 


 

















































		Commissioners- Ethics Board Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Ethics Board Backup

		Commissioners- Ethics Board Backup-a

		Commissioners- Ethics Board Backup-1

		Commissioners- Ethics Complaint Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Ethics Complaint Backup

		Commissioners- Ethics Complaint Backup-1

		Commissioners- Ethics Complaint Backup 2
















COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Jack Krakeel


Discussion of appointing two new members to the Public Facilities Authority.


Fayette County's Public Facility Authority is to be comprised of three (3) members who shall be residents of Fayette County and who 


shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County.  The members of the Authority shall be appointed to serve for a 


term of one (1) year from the date of such appointment and until their successors shall have been selected and appointed. 


 


On October 27, 2011, the Board of Commissioners reappointed Brian Cardoza, Mary Shaver, and Jack Smith to the Public Facilities 


Authority, with said reappointments to expire on October 31, 2012.  On October 11, 2012, the Board of Commissioners reappointed Brian 


Cardoza to another one year term which will expire on October 31, 2013.   


 


Both Mary Shaver and Jack Smith informed the Board that they have no desire to be reappointed to the Public Facilities Authority, and 


both of their terms expired October 31, 2012.  The Board of Commissioners will need to appoint two members to the Public Facility 


Authority. 


 


During the October 11, 2012 BOC meeting, Chairman Frady recommended these recommendations be discussed at this Workshop 


meeting.


No action is expected at this meeting.  The Board is requested to appoint two members to the Public Facilities Authority as soon as 


possible.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Appointments to the Public Facilities Authority are considered annually.


New BusinessWednesday, November 7, 2012







 


 


To:  Fayette County Board of Commissioners 


  Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator 


 


From:  Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 


 


Date:  September 18, 2012 


 


Subject: Upcoming Appointments to Various Boards and Committees 


 


There are several upcoming appointments to various Boards and Committees that will require your attention.     


 


Public Facilities Authority 


 


The Fayette County Public Facilities Authority Act (House Bill 1946) reads:  the Authority shall consist of three 


(3) members who shall be residents of Fayette County and who shall be appointed by the Board of 


Commissioners of Fayette County.  The members of the Authority shall be appointed to serve for a term of one 


(1) year from the date of such appointment and until their successors shall have been selected and appointed. 


 


Currently, Brian Cardoza, Mary Shaver, and Jack Smith are the three members who are serving on the Public 


Facilities Authority.  Each was reappointed by the Board on October 27, 2011.  Their terms began on November 


1, 2011 and will expire on October 31, 2012.  In recent conversations, Brian Cardoza agreed to be reappointed 


to the Public Facilities Authority, however, both Mary Shaver and Jack Smith have decided not to be 


reappointed. 


 


Planning Commission 


 


According to Fayette County’s Zoning Ordinance (Article XII Planning Commission), vacancies on the 


Planning Commission “shall be filled by the member of the Board of Commissioners hailing from the district 


which has the vacancy.”  Furthermore, the terms for each member of the Planning Commission “shall be three 


(3) years.” 


 


The terms for both Al Gilbert (representing Post 1) and James A. “Jim” Graw (representing Post 2) will expire 


on December 31, 2012.  Both of these gentlemen were appointed to the Planning Commission by the Board on 


December 11, 2008, and both men have recently communicated that they are willing to be reappointed to the 


Planning Commission. 


 


Zoning Board of Appeals  


 


Article IX of Fayette County’s Zoning Ordinance states “The Fayette County Zoning Board of Appeals shall 


consist of five (5) members residing within the County and shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners 


of Fayette County.”   


 


 







2 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214  ·  Main Phone:  770-305-5102 · Website:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 


 


Appointments to this body are not tied to a particular post so they are considered “at-large appointments”   The 


term of office for each member of the Zoning Board of Appeals is three years. 


 


Mr. Bill Beckwith’s appointment to this body will expire on December 31.  He was appointed to the Zoning 


Board of Appeals on December 10, 2009.  Mr. Beckwith has recently emailed Pete Frisina stating he is willing 


to be reappointed to the Zoning Board of Appeals. 


 


Library Board 


 


The Library Board is made up of seven members.  Four of the members are nominated by the local 


municipalities they represent, and their nomination is communicated to the Board of Commissioners by the 


municipalities (Fayetteville, Peachtree City, Tyrone and Brooks).  The remaining three positions are at-large 


positions which are filled by the Board of Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners officially appoints all 


members to the Library Board regardless of whether they are nominated by the municipalities or are at-large 


members.  All appointments to the Library Board are for four-year terms. 


 


On December 31, the appointments for Jeannette Ballard, Dortha Stinson, and Jean White will expire.  Jeanette 


Ballard and Dortha Stinson are at-large members, and Jean White is the nominee from the City of Fayetteville.  


Each of these ladies was appointed to the Library Board on December 11, 2008.  Within the past week, Fayette 


County received a letter from Dortha Stinson stating that she does not desire to be reappointed to the Library 


Board. 


 


Board of Health 


 


Currently, Commissioner Robert Horgan serves on the Board of Health on the Board of Commissioners’ behalf.  


Members to the Board of Health serve for six years, and one of the members of the Board of Health must be 


“the Chief Executive Officer of the Governing Authority of the County or his appointee.”   


 


This appointment will need to be considered in the coming months. 


 


If you need any further information from me I will be glad to provide it.  If you have any questions, please feel 


free to call me at 770-305-5102. 


 


FLJ 


 


 


 









































































		Commissioners- Public Facilities Authority Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Public Facilities Authority Backup

		Microsoft Word - Upcoming Appointments

		Commissioners- Public Facilities Authority- Backup 2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Jack Krakeel


Discussion of an appointment to the Region Six Mental Health Regional Planning Board.


In 2010, Georgia's Mental Health Services underwent extensive changes when the Georgia Department of Behavioral Health and 


Developmental Disabilities (GDBHDD) was established.  Part of those changes involved Fayette County being removed from the Region 


Three Mental Health Board to the Region Six Mental Health Board.  As part of the reorganization, counties were asked to reappoint 


existing members and any new members without defining terms of service so that the Commissioner of the GDBHDD could ensure 


staggered terms. (After staggered terms are established, ongoing appointments will be for three years each.) 


 


Due to its population, Fayette County has three seats on the Region Three Mental Health Board.  Both Leslie Edwards and Jackie Begg 


have been appointed to fill two of the three seats.  There is one vacancy on this Board.  Recently, Fayette County received a phone call 


from a citizen who desires to be named to the Region Six Mental Health Board. 


 


The Region Six Mental Health Board is suggesting that the new appointee be appointed with a term beginning immediately, and, in order 


to maintain staggered terms, for the appointment to expire on June 30, 2017. 


 


Chairman Frady asked to have this issue discussed at this Workshop meeting.


No action is sought at this time.  The Board is being requested to nominate an appointee to the Region Six Mental Health Board as soon 


as possible, with a term set to begin immediately and to expire on June 30, 2017.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessWednesday, November 7, 2012







 


 


To:  Jack Krakeel, Interim County Administrator 


 


From:  Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 


 


Date:  October 8, 2012 


 


Subject: Region Six Mental Health Planning Board Appointments and Vacancy 


 


I have some information that was recently provided to me for your consideration and direction. 


 


In 2010, Georgia’s Mental Health Services underwent extensive changes when the Georgia Department of 


Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities (GDBHDD) was created.  With these changes, Fayette 


County was removed from the Region Three Mental Health Board (comprised of counties comprising the 


Atlanta Regional Commission) and was placed into Region Six Mental Health Board.   


 


As part of the subsequent reorganization, counties were asked to reappoint existing members and any new 


members without defining expiration of terms so that the Commissioner of the GDBHDD could establish and 


ensure that terms of service are staggered.  The number of seats allotted to each County is determined by the 


County’s population.  Currently, Fayette County is allotted three seats. 


 


In October 2011, Ms. Leslie Edwards was appointed by the Fayette County BOC to serve on the Mental Health 


Board for a term to be determined by the “Regional Director” or Commissioner.  Supporting documentation for 


Ms. Edward’s appointment shows that it was understood that two other appointments would need to be 


designated to fill the remaining seats on the Mental Health Board.  On February 23, 2012, the Fayette County 


BOC appointed Ms. Jackie Begg as the second representative the Mental Health Board with a term to 


commence on March 1, 2012 and to expire on February 28, 2015.  (Both of these appointments also filled 


unexpired terms for both John Lane who had to resign due to scheduling conflicts and Harriett Steele who 


passed away while on the Board, and records of their appointments are attached to this memo.) 


 


Recently, I was contacted by Ms. Veronica Terry, the Board Support Services Worker, for the Region Six 


Mental Health Planning Board about the County’s appointments.  After obtaining information on who was 


appointed by the Fayette County BOC and their terms, Ms. Terry has indicated that the Mental Health Board’s 


records will reflect the following: 


 


1) Leslie Edwards completed Mr. John Lane’s term, and that this partial term expired on June 2012.  Then, 


Ms. Edwards began her first full term on the Region Six Mental Health Board beginning July 2012 and 


is set to expire June 2015. 


 


2) Jackie Begg is currently completing Harriett Steele’s appointment which is set to expire in 2013.  Then, 


she will begin her first full term which will expire in 2016.  (The appointment dates for Ms. Begg are 


different than what the Board set at the February 23, 2012 BOC meeting.) 


 


 







2 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214  ·  Main Phone:  770-305-5102 · Website:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


Fayette County has one remaining, vacant position that needs to be filled for the Mental Health Board.  On 


Friday afternoon, just before 3 pm, I received an email from Ms. Terry pertaining to the vacancy.  The email 


contained cover letter, by-laws, and an application which are also attached to this memo. (Ms. Terry indicated 


she would contact me in about a week concerning about the vacancy.) 


 


What makes this somewhat interesting is that around 4:00 p.m., approximately an hour after receiving the email 


from Ms. Terry, I received a phone call from  expressing interest in filling the 


vacancy.  (Due to the timing of the email and the phone call from , I have to wonder if word is out 


about the last vacancy—it just seems too coincidental.)   has asked for someone in the County to 


explain to her how to apply for the position, and to contact her at . 


 


My intention for this memo is to inform you of the staggered terms for Ms. Edwards and Ms. Begg as set by the 


Mental Health Board, and to seek your direction on how to proceed with filling this third, vacant position.  If 


you need any further information from me I will be glad to provide it.   


 


FLJ 


 


Attachments 


 


 


 









































































		Commissioners- Region Six Appointment Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Region Six Appointment Backup

		Commissioners- Region Six Appointment Backup

		Commissioners- Region Six Appointment Backup-1

		SKMBT_C25212101717020



		SKMBT_C25212101809300












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Elizabeth Whitlock / Dennis Dutton


Mrs. Elizabeth Whitlock requests the Board's consideration to amend Fayette County's Zoning Ordinance as it relates to pet grooming in 


the O-I (Office-Institutional) Zoning District.


Mrs. Elizabeth Whitlock owns a rental property at the intersection of Georgia Highway 54 and Sumner Road, and this property is 1.3 


acres and is near Peachtree City's border.  Previous uses of this property have been a real estate business, a day care for the 


handicapped and the Fayette Care Clinic.  A potential renter of the property wishes to locate a dog grooming establishment at the 


property.   


 


Mrs. Whitlock's property is zoned O-I (Office-Institutional), and as such, it does not allow for dog or pet grooming.  In Mrs. Whitlock's letter 


for consideration, she believes that a dog grooming service is very similar to both a veterinary clinic and a beauty salon.   


 


Beauty salons are Permitted Principal Uses and Structures for Office Parks with at least 100,000 square feet, and they are also allowed 


in the SR 74 North East Side Special Development District.  Animal hospitals and veterinary clinics are also permitted in O-I Zoning 


provided that all conditions specified in Article VII are met.


No action is sought at this time.  Staff is seeking direction for the Board on how to proceed with this request.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessWednesday, November 7, 2012

























		Planning and Zoning- Dog Grooming Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Dog Grooming Backup







